
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** SMALL COURTROOM, SECOND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
September 9, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live-streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. POUNDS     

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD, VICE-CHAIR     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 2 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• Work Session Minutes- July 29, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- August 5, 2024  

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     71766 - 72064 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 

ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County Commissioners.  

Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will act on each item presented below.  
 
Public Hearing 1: Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 002. Request to Rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 

Business Item 1:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 002. Request to Rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 
 
Public Hearing 2: Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 003. Request to Rezone 5.0 acres from AG to C-2 

Business Item 2:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 003. Request to Rezone 5.0 acres from AG to C-2  
 
Public Hearing 3: LD 2024-05-01. Land Division plat for three additional parcels between Bethel Church Rd.  

and New Bethel Grove Church Rd. at Hwy 11N. 
Business Item 3:  LD 2024-05-01. Land Division plat for three additional parcels between Bethel Church Rd. 

and New Bethel Grove Church Rd. at Hwy 11N. 
 

Public Hearing 4: LD 2024-06-01. Land Division plat for eight parcels off HWY 212 and Conley Ditch Rd. 
Business Item 4: LD 2024-06-01. Land Division plat for eight parcels between off HWY 212 and Conley Ditch 

Rd. 
    

  

1



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 

Public Hearing 5: LD 2024-06-02. Land Division plat for two additional parcels off Post Rd 

Business Item 5:   LD 2024-06-02. Land Division plat for two additional parcels off Post Rd. 
 
 

 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten (10) 

minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees, or other events by the 

Commissioners.  
 

Presentation #1: Jasper County 4-H Recognition Program 
Presentation #2: Animal Control Operations Report 
 

 

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 

for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  

be courteous of the 3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 

Business Items: 

6. Initial Short-Term Rental License Applications  
7. 911 Authority Board Structure 
8. New Fire Rescue Ambulance Quotes  
9. New Fire Rescue 3000 Gallon Super Tanker Quotes 
10. New Fire Rescue Turnout Gear Quotes 
11. Fire Station 7 Preliminary Design Proposal – Precision Planning 
12. 2024 LRA Project Bid Submittals – County Line Rd Sections, Whip-Poor-Will and Campbell Cross Rd 
13. Joint Development Authority Board Appointment 
14. Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointment 
15. FY 2022 Capital Improvement Element Update Adoption 
16. Human Resources and County Boards Report 
17. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 

XIV. Adjournment  

 
 
  

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 

2



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  September 9, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 

 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 

• Work Session Minutes- July 29, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- August 5, 2024 

Background: 

 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve minutes for:  

 

• Work Session Minutes- July 29, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- August 5, 2024 

 
 
  

3



                                              Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

      Joint Work Session Along with the City of Monticello and the City of Shady Dale 

                                                                    July 29, 2024   

                                                                      6:00 P.M. 

 
Chairman Bruce Henry called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman; Steven Ledford, Vice Chair; Don Jernigan; Sheila Jones and 
Asher Gray  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Clerk- Administrative Services Director, and Larissa Ruark, 
Chief Accounting Officer. 
 
Chairman Bruce Henry began the Work Session by explaining that the county would like the 911 Joint Authority 
Board to be reduced to a five- or seven-member board. He said the board is currently an eleven-member board, but 
it does not work well. Chairman Henry said that once a decision is made they will need to revise the bylaws to 
reflect their decision. He stated that five-member boards are easier to work with. Chairman Henry said County 
Manager Mike Benton would be removed from the board, leaving seven members. He said that according to the 
board's bylaws the Sheriff and Fire Chief are appointed by position. Chairman Henry suggested five appointed 
board members with the county appointing three and each city appointing one.  
 
Commissioner Ledford suggested dropping the Sheriff and the Fire chief to advisory members and not voting 
members.  
 
Chairman Henry said the Sheriff and Fire Chief want to remain voting members because they are involved and 
directly affected by decisions made by the board.  
 
Commissioner Gray said he feels the Sheriff should be advisory, not a voting member. He said then it could be a 
three-member board. He said the Sheriff did not want the responsibility of covering the 911 center but still wanted 
to be a voting member and still have control over it. He said if the sheriff doesn't want the 911 Authority under his 
department, he should be an advisory member only. Commissioner Gray asked why they needed more than three 
members when there were only twelve employees. He said three would work better and still allow one member 
from each entity.  
 
Doug Currie said the only thing he has heard is that it's hard to get members to the meeting to get anything done. 
He asked what authority the board had to change things. 
 
Commissioner Ledford said they oversee the hiring and firing of the 911 Director, set the budget, oversee 911 
employees, and handle payroll, insurance, and retirement for 911 employees. He said there is a lot that goes on 
under their authority.  
 
Doug Currie said a three-member board could still be tough getting everyone to a meeting together. Chairman 
Henry said that a three-member board might simplify some things, but he feels that a three-member board is too 
small.  
 
Commissioner Ledford said that the Sheriff and Fire Chief would make a five-member board and if they would 
abstain from voting unless necessary, he feels that would work best.  
 
Doug Currie said he had heard mention of the county doing payroll for the 911. Chairman Henry said it was 
brought up when the board asked for assistance.  
 
Commissioner Gray said he feels the City should handle the 911 payroll. He said they have a seat at the table, but 
they no longer provide funding. 

4



 
Mr. Currie said that it bothers him to hear the county commissioners say the city is not providing funding.  He said 
every taxpayer in the county pays the same percentage. He said his tax bill didn't say anywhere that he isn't paying 
for sheriff, fire, or 911. He also stated the way the tax bill is broken down every citizen who is a property owner 
pays county taxes. He said he was shocked the school board gets more than the entire county. 
 
Commissioner Ledford said most counties have higher school taxes. Mr. Currie said it wasn't right, he wants good 
schools, but the entire county must operate on less than what is given to run four schools. He said he has heard so 
many times the city doesn't contribute but every citizen contributes. Mr. Currie said he has been told the city did 
away with the police department, but they don’t contribute to the Sheriff’s Department.  He said that when the 
Sheriff's Office has a need it should be a county-wide expense and should not fall more on city residents. He said 
that nobody in the city is requesting more services just the same as other county residents. 
 
Commissioner Gray said there is a code section that the County Sheriff can require the City to provide funding to 
the Sheriff if he provides services. He said it is state- law but his point is the city government has a seat at the table 
and for whatever reason the county became fully financially responsible for the 911 Authority Board. He said he is 
suggesting the city assume that responsibility. 
 
Mr. Currie said he is not against a discussion but it frustrates him when people say citizens living within the cities 
don't contribute for services. He said city residents pay the same ratio as anyone else and are not asking for more 
just the services they are paying for.   
 
Commissioner Gray asked when the City of Monticello would run water and gas to his home because he lives in 
the county and wants those services offered in his area. City Manager Lathaydra Sands advised Commissioner 
Gray he is not in their service territory and that they cannot provide him with those services. Commissioner Gray 
said it was written in 1996 how the money would be allocated and that there would be funding from the cities and 
the county. He said for whatever reason that stopped in 1999 and his point and suggestion was that the city handle 
payroll for the 911 Authority.  
 
City Manager Lathaydra Sands asked Commissioner Gray if he was suggesting the City of Monticello assume 
responsibility for 911 employees' wages or simply data entry. Mrs. Sands said it would be simple to add them to 
their data entry system and handle payroll if the information was submitted on time and funding was provided.  
Chairman Henry again suggested a five-member board including the Sheriff and Fire.  Chairman Henry said the 
board has seven members with two terms expiring in March 2025. He stated he hates to remove members who 
have served for so long, but changes must be made. He also stated some members have a background in public 
safety and those are the members he prefers to keep on the board.  
 
Commissioner Ledford said he feels a background in public safety should be a requirement.  
 
Commissioner Gray said all entities should hold off on any appointment for vacant and expiring terms until a 
decision is made regarding the number of members.  
 
Chairman Henry recommended a seven-member board until February 28, 2025, due to terms expiring in March 
2025. He said that would give them time to figure out details and agree. He said if everyone is in agreeance they 
can move forward on March 1, 2025, with a five-member board and any changes they have made to bylaws. He 
said the cities could go ahead and vote and then the county could get it added to the agenda for the Board of 
Commissioners meeting in September 2024.  
 
City Manager Lathaydra Sands said the City of Monticello could put it on their August agenda.   
Commissioner Gray asked if there were any updates on the issue with traffic and the City square. Mr. Currie 
responded the Sheriff and GDOT had gotten involved. GDOT has adjusted the lights and agreed to have engineers 
gather information so they can see what the issues are. The GDOT said they are willing to help with what they can 

5



without disrupting business for the local merchants. He said the GDOT doesn't move quickly but there are things 
in the works.  
 
County Manager Mike Benton advised that he spoke to the GDOT constructor and they have already started 
testing some possible solutions.  
 
The Work Session was adjourned at 6:56. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________                                                    __________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman                                                                        Sheila Jefferson, Clerk                

6



Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

August 5, 2024 

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

                                                                     6:00 P.M. 

 
 
Chairman Bruce Henry called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman; Steven Ledford, Vice Chair; Don Jernigan; Sheila Pounds and 
Asher Gray  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Jefferson, Clerk- Administrative Services Director, Larissa Ruark, 
Chief Accounting Officer, Doug Attaway- Planning and Zoning Director,  
Pledge of Allegiance: 

 

Invocation: Ed Westbrook 
 

Agenda Approval:   Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve the agenda with item number 11 being moved 
to item number 1 Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda: Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the following minutes  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the following minutes 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- July 1, 2024 

• Called Meeting Minutes- July 12, 2024 

 

Commissioner Pounds seconded the motion, passed unanimously.    
    
Commissioner Gray motioned to approve Check #’s 71532-71765. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, 
passed unanimously 
 
Business Item 11: Emergency Management Agency Interim Director Appointment:  
Longtime Jasper County resident and Public Safety professional Ed Westbrook was asked to serve as Interim EMA 
Director. Mr. Westbrook stated he would be willing to serve as Interim EMA Director for six months. Mr. Westbrook 
stated if appointed Interim Director, he would train two deputy directors during the six-month period who have 
already been working on their own to get the certification required for the EMA position. He said he would forgo 
the annual $5000 salary and split the wages between the two deputy directors in training. Mr. Westbrook said they 
are already county employees one at the Sheriff’s office and the other at the fire department. He said having two 
Deputy Directors trained would prevent the county from continuing to struggle if someone leaves.  
 
Commissioner Ledford asked if there would be issues if something were to happen and one of the deputy directors 
was working as a Sheriff’s Deputy also. Mr. Westbrook said this position would not affect his responsibilities as a 
Sheriff’s Deputy. He said that he wants to teach them the things they may not learn in the classes. Mr. Westbrook 
said he is not looking to receive a dime from the county he just wants to train someone who cares about the county. 
The Sheriff and the Fire Chief have given consent for their employees to serve as Deputy Directors. Mr. Westbrook 
said he is willing to continue to help if in six months there is still a need for him to.  
Commissioner Gray motioned to appoint Ed Westbrook as EMA Director and train the two deputy directors splitting 
the salary between them for a six-month term. Commissioner Pounds seconded, motion passed unanimously.  
 
Chairman Henry requested a motion to start the public hearing at 6:14 p.m. Commissioner Jernigan motioned to start 
the Public Hearing. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

 

7



Public Hearing 1: Rezoning Request – Case Number 2024-REZ-001: Planning and Zoning Director Doug 
Attaway presented a request for the rezoning of 7.57 acres from residential to agriculture at 150 Landers Ln. Mr. 
Attaway said the applicant Mr. Pope had petitioned to table the motion. Chairman Henry said the Public Hearing 
would still be held. Commissioner Jernigan asked if Mr. Pope was being charged anything to table the motion. Mr. 
Attaway said there was a $200 tabling fee and Mr. Pope had paid that fee. Chairman Henry called for anyone in 
favor of rezoning Landers Lane.  
 

In Favor: No one spoke in favor of the rezoning.  
 

Opposed:  
Cathy Benson: Mrs. Benson spoke against the rezoning of Landers Lane. She said there are nine homes on Landers 
Way, six on Hoffman Dr, and three on Hwy 212 all considered Landers Subdivision. She said Playtec also owns 65 
acres in that area which is zone residential as well. She asked why the Commissioners would allow Ag zoning in a 
subdivision saying that’s spot zoning at its best. Mrs. Benson then stated that a member of the Planning and Zoning 
Board said the residential and ag zoning does not support the type of home occupation that is happening at this 
location. She said that there is at least one County Official possibly two that are pushing for the rezoning to be passed 
due to the owner's last name and who Mr. Pope is related to. She said if that is true, it is a conflict of interest due to 
favoritism of a last name and that should not be part of a narrative or decision.  
 

Sherri Stone Benton: Mrs. Benton spoke against the rezoning. She presented the commissioners with documents 
on the home residential ordinance and pictures. She said Jason Pope has been violating county ordinances for the 
last eight years. She said he has a big truck, and he is ruining the roads. Mrs. Benton said even if he gets the property 
rezoned, he is still in violation of the ton limit of the vehicle and has two diesel tanks there. She said most of the 
residents in the subdivision use wells and she is concerned that if those diesel tanks leak it will contaminate the water 
supply. She said it would contaminate Jackson Lake as well because they are all on Jackson Lake near Franks 
Restaurant. She said he has three giant garages and dump trucks. She complained that every morning when he starts 
the trucks, she could smell the fumes and feel the ground vibrate. She said the county is already struggling to repair 
that area due to tornado damage and his trucks are adding to the damage. Mrs. Benton said that it's not a pretty site 
and is reducing the value of their homes because it looks like an industrial site. She said that based on the real estate 
law agriculture is supposed to be for non-farm uses of the land. She said he has a logging company, and it is not 
even close to a farm. She said Mr. Pope has been running his business from there for 6-8 years. Mrs. Benton said 
Mr. Pope worked for the power company, but his trucks are blocking power lines and that could cause issues. She 
said that even if his rezoning application was approved, he is still in violation of the ordinance for agriculture home 
office. She said that she is not just fussing because it's ugly, but if the county is going to have codes, then they should 
be enforced. She said continuing to drag this situation out needs to stop because his place is an eyesore, and it is 
unfair to his neighbors. Mrs. Benton said she is highly opposed to him being able to continue to do what he is doing.  
 

Mary Patrick: Mrs. Patrick spoke as a member of the Planning and Zoning Board. She said the board voted 
unanimously against Mr. Pope’s rezoning request.  
 

Jason Bunn: Mr. Bunn spoke against the rezoning request saying that he is not directly affected and doesn’t know 
the resident requesting rezoning. He said he has no personal involvement at all. He said he hopes after a yearlong 
discussion on zoning and rezoning, the commissioners will be consistent in the decisions they make. He said he 
wants to see whatever an area is zoned stay that way.  
 

Business Item 1:  Rezoning Request – Case Number 2024-REZ-001: Tabled due to request by applicant. 
Public Hearing 2: Ordinance Amendment – Add Recreational Vehicle Definition to Chapter 119: Planning 
and Zoning Director Doug Attaway presented a request to add recreation vehicle definition to Chapter 119. Mr. 
Attaway said that the P&Z board has been working hard and they made recommendations on some changes. Mr. 
Attaway said he agrees with their recommendation making it easier to enforce the code regarding living in campers 
within the county.  
Commissioner Ledford mentioned the 2 campgrounds in the county saying they have mailboxes. He asked if they 
would need to add something regarding that situation. Mr. Attaway stated that this only pertains to AG zoning areas.  

8



Chairman Henry said they are discussing a definition of recreation vehicles. Mr. Attaway said they also want to add 
a use modification for an exception for new construction homes in AG zoning. No citizens spoke in favor of or 
opposing the ordinance.  
 

Business Item 2:   Ordinance Amendment – Add Recreational Vehicle Definition to Chapter 119:  Mr. Attaway 
said the P&Z board voted unanimously in favor of this amendment. Commissioner Gray asked where the term 
permanently towable by a light-duty truck came from. Mr. Attaway said that FEMA uses it in the flood section of 
their relief packet. He stated a light-duty truck is anything less than a one-and-a-quarter ton. Commissioner Gray 
asked if there was a reason this was not included in residential zoning in the area where there are larger tracks. Mr. 
Attaway said it is in the standing policy that campers are only allowed in AG zoning while building a house.  
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the Ordinance Amendment- Adding Recreational Vehicle Definition 
to Chapter 119 and adding use modification. Commissioner Gray seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 

Public Hearing 3: Ordinance Amendment – Update Table of Permitted Uses Chapter 119: Mr. Attaway 
presented a request to update the Table of Permitted Uses. He said the P&Z Board has been working diligently to 
get the table updated. Commissioner Ledford asked for clarification that items listed but not marked for use on any 
of the tables are items not allowed. Mr. Attaway said that is correct. Commissioner Ledford asked if such items 
could be removed to eliminate any confusion. Mr. Attaway mentioned to the P&Z Board about removing items from 
the table, and they decided to leave items as all items were not allowed. Commissioner Ledford asked if items 
previously removed should be added back to the table and left unmarked with the understanding unmarked items are 
not allowed. The County Attorney said any item the county is concerned about they may want to define explicitly 
as not allowed. He said that he recommends this because when challenged the common argument is ordinances are 
ambiguous especially those with an old zoning table. Mr. Attaway said the table reads that all uses not shown as 
permitted or special uses within each district are specifically prohibited in that district. The County Attorney said as 
currently constituted that would cover the county as unmarked or not listed items are prohibited. Commissioner Gray 
asked from a legal stand would someone have a better argument if it is not explicitly defined. The County Attorney 
said that it was hard to say it would be fact-specific. Chairman Henry asked if the County Attorney felt good about 
the amendment. The County Attorney said it appears to be what he would expect to see. Chairman Henry called for 
citizen comments from those in favor.  
 

Mary Patrick: Mrs. Patrick asked the County Attorney about the items with a blank. She wanted to know if it should 
be added as a line item, so the county is covered if challenged. The Attorney said again it may be a benefit to 
specifically list any item the county has a concern with. He said without adding it he is still confident there would 
be a good legal argument that it not being listed at all means it is prohibited. Chairman Henry asked if listing specific 
items and leaving the unmark would stop an argument from going to litigation. The County Attorney said that 
certainly could stop litigation.  
 

Bill Nash: Mr. Nash noted the irony of the board removing some items from the use table and then adding short-
term rentals. He said that is why P&Z board members decided to add the wording to the use table that if it is blank, 
it’s not allowed. He said that he would agree that being explicated is more helpful in avoiding litigation. 
 

Business Item 3:  Ordinance Amendment – Update Table of Permitted Uses Chapter 119:  

Commissioner Gray suggested adding all uses not shown or blank spaces to cover both. He said if they try to add 
every item not allowed it would get very detailed and lengthy. He said they could add big items that are more 
concerning. The County Attorney agreed that the wording would address all issues. Chairman Henry said he would 
like to see Rock Quarry, Mining, and Adult Entertainment added to the Use Table as not allowed.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the ordinance change adding all uses not shown or purposely left blank 
and rock quarry, mining, adult entertainment, and solar farms as not allowed. Commissioner Gray seconded.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan asked why they would add solar farms. Commissioner Ledford said the land around solar 
farms must be completely stripped and underbrush kept cleared off. He said if a storm or other event caused damage 
to the solar panels the stuff that would leak out of those panels would cause more damage to the surrounding 

9



environment than that caused by mining. Commissioner Ledford said there is a difference between someone wanting 
to place solar panels on their home for personal use and someone looking to profit from the power company and 
destroying 3000 acres in Jasper County. Commissioner Pounds asked if there have been requests to install solar 
farms around the county causing Commissioner Ledford to feel the need to include them in the Use Table. 
Commissioner Ledford said the county has received a few calls, so he would like to add them to the Use Table as 
not allowed. Commissioner Jernigan said there are already Solar Farms in Jasper County. Mr. Attaway said there is 
one in the city limits of Shady Dale. The Board of Commissioners jurisdiction is over the unincorporated areas of 
the county.  
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 

Public Hearing 4: Ordinance Amendment- Remove the Conservation Requirement from AG Zoning 

Chapter 119:  

Mr. Attaway requested that some wording in the county ordinance be changed to match what the county 
commissioner passed at the May 6, 2024, BOC meeting. He said the request was to remove the conservation 
subdivision requirement from the AG district. Mr. Attaway said the board recommended removing all major land 
subdivisions for residential purposes in the AG district. The conservational design would be required to leave large 
land lots for agricultural use for natural green space protected by the conservation easement. Mr. Attaway said at the 
May 6 meeting the county commissioners voted unanimously to remove conservation use in AG zoning. He said 
this would reflect what was voted in, no conservation subdivisions in AG zoning. Chairman Henry asked how the 
P&Z voted. Mr. Attaway said they voted in favor 4 to 1. No citizens spoke for or against the Ordinance Amendment- 
removing the Conservation Requirement from AG Zoning Chapter 119.  

 

Business Item 4:   Ordinance Amendment- Remove the Conservation Subdivision Requirement from AG 

Zoning Chapter 119: Chairman Henry called for a motion. Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the 
Ordinance Amendment and remove the Conservation Requirement from AG Zoning Chapter 119. Commissioner 
Gray seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

Public Hearing 5: Ordinance Amendment – Update Sign Ordinance Chapter 111: 

Mr. Attaway presented a recommendation from the P&Z board to amend the sign usage for Jasper County. 
Commissioner Ledford asked if the section regarding the animated sign included signs with a stationary light. Mr. 
Attaway said an example would be the inflatable characters that move once inflated. 
 

Bill Nash:  Mr. Nash is a member of the P&Z board, he said he voted in favor at their meeting He said they had a 
good distinction between on-premises and off-premises. He said he had a second thought of how it should be handled 
for the on-premises signs. Mr. Nash said he thinks it may be an excessive burden to require someone with an on-
premises to reapply and get a permit every three years. He said a better solution is to offer a token fee or permit 
charge and require proof their sign is in good condition. He said they could also simply have long-term or indefinite 
time for on-premises. Mr. Nash said he feels the only real concern the county should have about on-premises signs 
is if they were originally permitted and if are they being maintained.  
 

Business Item 5:  Ordinance Amendment – Update Sign Ordinance Chapter 111: 

Commissioner Gray asked what the renewal fee was before the ordinance change. Mr. Attaway said there was no 
renewal fee it was a one-time fee. He said if you got a sign, and it was permitted it would be there until it falls. Mr. 
Attaway said that the board had suggested an assigned permit number to correlate with the permit and the person 
who put the sign in place. He said they are currently contacting the property owner because they are leasing the 
property to the sign owner. Mr. Attaway explained what Mr. Nash referred to when he addressed the board. Chairman 
Henry asked if this ordinance change would include signs currently in place or would be grandfathered in. Mr. 
Attaway said the ones who have permits would be given a three-year date to match the ordinance. Commissioner 
Jernigan said that several signs throughout the county are illegal, he said removing signs would be a full-time job. 
Mr. Attaway said the Code Enforcement Officer and Building Inspector have been working together to remove 
illegally placed signs. Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the Update Sign Ordinance Amendment. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. Commissioner Ledford said he agrees with Mr. Nash and would like to 

10



add the on-site signs to be pushed back to a five-year renewal instead of three if the property and sign have the same 
owner. Chairman Henry asked if anyone else had mentioned the on-premises signs. Mr. Attaway said no he also 
thought about it after the board voted. He said that he agreed with Mr. Nash. Commissioner Gray withdrew his 
second because he thinks language should be added for on-premises. Chairman Henry asked about places of worship 
and if they would be required to get permit signage. Mr. Attaway said they would fall under the on-premises unless 
they place signs in other areas.  
 
Commissioner Gray motioned to approve and add language under section 111-33 with the exception of on-site 
premise permits being a one-time fee. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 6: FY 2022 Capital Improvements Element Update: Mr. Benton said the PCA requires counties 
to have impact fee programs to submit annual updates. He said the county has submitted several. Mr. Benton in FY 
2022 the DCA update that was submitted had major changes removing the sheriff’s office and jail, adding roads and 
bridges, and animal control. Impact fee funds allocated for the jail and Sheriff’s department were used for roads and 
bridges and animal control. DCA has said three times that this is not how it works. He said few counties have 
attempted to make amendments or major changes to their impact fee program. He said the bottom line it takes a 
formal amendment process. He said it can’t just be changed. He said you to show the reason why you are making 
changes. He said the 2022 format was updated and reworked and he is requesting the Commissioner's approval of 
the updated 2022 CIE to be resubmitted to DAC to get their approval according to their guidelines.  
 

Mary Patrick:  Mrs. Patrick opposed saying the ad was run in the paper the Thursday before the meeting not giving 
enough time to research the topic being discussed. She said she arrived early to review information, but no packet 
was available. Mr. Benton stated the ad stated a packet would be available upon request.  Mrs. Patrick said three 
days before the hearing is not enough time. Mr. Benton suggested trying to get DCA-compliant and approve the 
2022 and 2023 because they are older and do not approve the 2024 and hold a work session.  

 
Business Item 6:  FY 2022 Capital Improvements Element Update: Commissioner Gray asked if these had been 
previously approved. Chairman Henry said the BOC approved but DCA did not. Commissioner Gray asked when 
they had been sent to DCA. Mr. Benton said he has been working on this for about two years. He said even our 
Regional Commission approved what was submitted but DCA did not due to the amendment process. Mr. Benton 
thinks 2024 should be tabled and they should focus on 2022 and 2023.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the FY 2022 Capital Improvements Update. Commissioner Pounds 
seconded, motion passed unanimously.  
 

Public Hearing 7: FY 2023 Capital Improvements Element Update: Chairman Henry said the information for 
FY 2023 is the same as 2022 but for 2023. No citizen comments in favor or oppose. 
 

Business Item 7:  FY 2023 Capital Improvements Element Update: Chairman Henry called for a motion. 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve the FY 2023 Capital Improvements Update. Commissioner Pounds 
Seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

 

Public Hearing 8: FY 2024 Capital Improvements Element Update: Chairman Henry called for a motion to 
table the Public Hearing and business item on the recommendation of the County Manager Mike Benton.  
 

Business Item 8: FY 2024 Capital Improvements Element Update: Commissioner Jernigan motioned to table 
the FY 2024 Capital Improvement Element Update. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Presentation/Delegations: None 
 

Citizen Comments:  

11



Ken Horton: Mr. Horton gave an update on the Food Bank's progress. He said they have been approved for the 
Southern Crescent grant allowing them to move forward. Mr. Horton said they were very excited and wanted to 
thank the County Commissioners for their help throughout the process. He said they sat down with Chairman Henry 
and Architect Bill Nash to cut costs since the last bid.   
 

Walt Harrell:  Mr. Harrell spoke about Jordan Rd not being repaired. He said December will be four years that the 
road has been out. He said he had talked to Mr. Benton several times. He said his concerns have fallen on deaf ears. 
He said he wants the county commissioners to put heat on the county manager to get it done. Mr. Harrell said he 
was told the county has the pipe it just needs to be put in. He said he was told to call Public Works Director Michael 
Walsh and see if he can get him to do it. Mr. Harrell said he is not the county manager and that’s not his job. He said 
he doesn’t find that response cute. He said certain residents don’t want the road repaired and believes it hasn’t been 
fixed for that reason. He said it’s a county road and if the county isn’t going to fix it, they need to put a gate on both 
ends with a lock and let the residents on that road maintain it. He said he likes to ride down Jordan Road with his 
wife and eat ice cream on Sundays and wants it fixed. 
 

James Belcher: Mr. Belcher spoke to the board regarding the Elections and Registration Board. He said the board 
should have three members one Democratic one Republican and one Non-Partisan if they can find one. He said he 
submitted three names of candidates he believes would be a good fit.  
 

Bill Nash: Mr. Nash spoke to support David McKenna for the Public Facilities Board appointment. He said he 
knows Mr. McKenna and feels his background makes him a good fit.  
 

Mary Patrick: Ms. Patrick spoke against the purchase of a recreation vehicle. She said that instead of purchasing a 
new $40,000 vehicle the county needs another code enforcement officer. She said a second code enforcement officer 
has been needed for several years. Mrs. Patrick said the commissioners can find plenty of money for everything else. 
She said they support the Chamber of Commerce, the development authority, gave money for a city park, and even 
paid for a trip to Washington. Mrs. Patrick said if they could find the money for everything else they needed to start 
funding essential functions of the government. She said if the county is going to have codes they need to be enforced 
and if they are not going to be enforced then the code needs to be done away with.  
 

Chris Florence:  Mr. Florence spoke against purchasing a new truck for the Recreation Department. Mr. Florence 
said he has spoken to senior citizens around the county and what he hears about the most is the tax burden. He said 
there are several communities around us with much larger recreation departments that don’t have a $400,000 budget 
or a county vehicle. He said he feels our recreation funding is excessive. He said other communities have boards 
made up of volunteers. Mr. Florence said the County Commissioners should check with other areas to find out how 
they operate. Mr. Florence then mentioned that he had asked about the storm damage to the animal control. He said 
he called to check the status and to his knowledge, nothing has been done to repair the shelter and they are still 
running at half-capacity. He said he would like the Commissioners to take that issue seriously because the animals 
don’t have a voice. 
 

County Commissioner Items and Updates: 

Commissioner Pounds: Commissioner Pounds spoke regarding the rules for Citizen comments she said the 
requirement is to state your name and address.  She said Mrs. Patrick continuously ignores those rules. She said she 
would also like to address the comment about trips to Washington DC. Commissioner Pounds said she is unsure if 
any other commissioner went to Washington DC but if citizens have an issue with that, they need to contact Governor 
Kemp. 
 

Chairman Henry: None 

 

Commissioner Jernigan: None 
 

Commissioner Gray: Commissioner Gray gave an update on the traffic on the city square saying the City of 
Monticello Manager gave him information on progress being made at a joint work session. He said GDOT has 

12



installed new sensors and cameras as well as adjusted the timing of the lights. He said those items and adjustments 
will help them gather data and respond to issues accordingly. He said they had also discussed signage to help direct 
traffic toward the bypasses to reduce traffic around the square. He said they have made some progress and hopes 
that they will see some changes in the future.  
 

Commissioner Ledford: None 

 

Business Item 9: Elections and Registration Board Appointments: Chairman Henry said they received seven 
applications for the Elections Board and will be appointing three members. Chairman Henry said applicants are 
required to be present and stand before the board. He said applicants will tell the board why they wish to serve on 
the Elections Board and answer questions from the Commissioners.  
 

Jason Bunn: Mr. Bunn said he moved to Jasper County approximately four years ago. He said he’s voted since he 
was 18 but never really got involved in his county until he moved here. He said he was suddenly drawn into being 
involved. He said he has gotten to know the Commissioners and given them grief over different situations. He said 
he decided if he wanted to be involved with the direction the county is headed then maybe he should give some of 
his time back to the county. He said he has approximately fifteen years of management experience and training in 
dealing with people. He said he just wanted to offer his time to the county. Commissioner Ledford asked Mr. Bunn 
if he was the owner-operator of the truck he drives, with the ability to set his schedule. Mr. Bunn said he owned his 
truck for eight years and can adjust his schedule as needed. 
 

Suzanne Deal Fitzgerald: Mrs. Fitzgerald said she has lived in Jasper County for over forty years and has always 
been interested in politics. She said she even ran for County Commissioner in the mid-nineteen-nineties. She said 
she enjoys politics and living in Jasper County. Mrs. Fitzgerald said she feels she needs to give more of her time to 
serve her community. She said she joined the fire department for a while but her knees and back could not handle 
the physical strain. She said she believes she would enjoy serving on the Elections board and would try to be fair. 
She said she realizes everyone walks a different path and may have different beliefs and she would be honest and 
try to be fair. She said she might have to work on fairness.  
 

Mark Logan: Mr. Logan said he is retired and has no schedule to work around. He said he feels all three members 
should be non-partisan. He said he is non-partisan; He hates Republicans and Democrats the same. Mr. Logan said 
he would like to give back and serve the community.  
 

David McGuire: David McGuire said he has served as election supervisor for nine years. He said he is 
knowledgeable about state and federal laws. He said he would ensure elections were freely, fairly, and legally held. 
He said he has always taken pride in the fact the citizens of Jasper County did not have to be concerned about the 
way county elections were held and it is his goal to maintain that reputation of equality.  Commissioner Ledford 
asked Mr. McGuire if he felt it fair for him to be a board member and poll worker. Mr. McGuire said no that would 
be wrong and if appointed to the board he would no longer work the election polls. Commissioner Gray asked how 
many years of experience and what political party he belonged to. Mr. McGuire said he has nine years of experience 
and is a member of the Democratic party. Commissioner Pounds said that Mr. McGuire skipped the question on his 
application asking if he is related to any elected officials or county employees. Mr. McGuire apologized for the 
oversight on his part. He said his mother is the activities director at the Senior Center and his aunt is the office 
manager for Planning and Zoning. Mr. McGuire said he also has relatives who work at Public Works for the county.  
 

Janice Smith: Janice Smith said her experience working with teens and law firms has given her the skills and tools 
she would need to serve on this board. She said she has the time, and this would be a way for her to serve her 
community. Mrs. Smith said she would bring integrity and transparency into the electoral process.  
 

Guy Tucker: Guy Tucker said he has always tried to give back to his community. He said work and family 
commitments have always limited what he could do. Mr. Tucker said he is now retired and has some free time. Mr. 
Tucker said he has lived in Jasper County for two and a half years and feels he is a good fit for the Elections board. 

13



He said his experience as a VP of Finance could be useful as a board member. He said he ran meetings, worked with 
committees, and did what needed to be done to organize and carry out plans. 
 
Chairman Henry said they had six applicants present and only three open positions he then called for a motion.  
Commissioner Ledford motioned to Appoint Mark Logan for a two-year term, David McGuire for a four-year term, 
and Guy Tucker for a four-year term. Commissioner Gray seconded, motion passed four to one Commissioner 
Pounds opposed. 
 

Business Item 10: Public Facilities Authority Board Appointment: David McKenna was the only applicant for 
the open position on the Public Facilities Board. Mr. McKenna said he has lived in Jasper County for six years and 
would like to give back to the community. He said Bill Nash suggested he apply for the PFA board because of his 
experience. Mr. McKenna said he has been involved in many Public Facilities projects that were financed with tax-
exempt bonds issued by local bonding authorities. He said having been through the process many times he feels his 
knowledge could be useful to the board.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to appoint David McKenna to the Public Facilities board. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded, motion passed unanimously. 
 

Business Item 12: County-Wide Dirt and Gravel Roads Repair Bid Results – FEMA Disaster Program: Public 
Works Director Michael Walsh was called by Chairman Henry to answer questions about county road work. 
Chairman Henry said the roads damaged by the tornado were put out for bid twice the first time there were no bids 
entered. The second time, one bid was submitted for more than double what FEMA had approved. Chairman Henry 
said he spoke with the county attorney to find out if it would be possible to request that the company who placed the 
bid look at each road and give a quote for just the work that must be done and would be covered by the FEMA funds. 
The County Attorney said the safest way would be to rebid and only include the work the county would like done. 
He said there may be other options based on their discussion, but a rebid is the best solution. He said the main 
concern is losing grant or reimbursement money from FEMA if it is not handled correctly. He said the county could 
hold a meeting with the company that placed the bid to see what they are willing to work out, then discuss with 
FEMA for approval. Chairman Henry suggested tabling until a conversation with the bidding company and FEMA.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to table. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

 
Business Item 13: Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Monticello for Building Inspections and 

Court Services: Chairman Henry said the county has been working with the City of Monticello. He said the city has 
its own Code Enforcement Officer, but the county will handle building inspections and court services. County 
Manager Mike Benton said the county will receive the fees for inspections done in the city. He said the city has a 
preapproval process then the county handles inspections. Commissioner Gray asked if the county would receive all 
fines as well. Mr. Benton replied yes.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to authorize Chairman Henry to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
City of Monticello for building inspections and court services. Commissioner Jernigan seconded, motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

Business 14: Engage Professional Services to Amend the Impact Fee Program: Chairman Henry said they are 
discussing using professional services for the Impact Fee Program. He said in 2006 the county used Ross and 
Associates and is considering using them again. He said they have recently helped some local counties with their 
Impact Fee Program. Mr. Benton stated Ross and Associates handle most of the counties that have the impact fees 
amended.  He said this is their specialty. Chairman Henry said that Mr. Benton has been working on this for a while 
but continues to have issues with the DCA. He said this company has a working relationship with DCA and must 
get everything he does approved. He said they needed to move forward to get the impact fees straightened out. 
Commissioner Ledford said they can also help with defining projects of what is and is not allowed. Chairman Henry 
said they lay out projected growth and what impact each item or department will have to determine the dollar amount.  
The County Manager said there would be a work session with the county commissioners. He said they are looking 

14



for the county to work with Ross and Associates to get a proposal. Commissioner Jernigan asked how much it would 
cost the county. Mr. Benton said he would rather not say but there are several factors involved. He said all he could 
tell him was that it would not be cheap. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to get a quote from Ross and Associates. Commissioner Jernigan seconded, motion 
passed unanimously.  
 

Business Item 15: Recreation Department Capital Expenditure Request – New Vehicle: Recreation Director 
Keldrick Davis and Assistant Director Adrian Campbell presented the commissioners with a request for a new truck 
for the recreational department. Chairman Henry said he had Mr. Benton look into sharing with a department that 
may already have an available vehicle that fits the needs of Mr. Davis and his employees. He said he hates spending 
money on one that may be sitting most of the time. Mr. Benton said that the vehicle that would be available the most 
is the Tax Assessor vehicle. He spoke to the Tax Assessor and she said from January to June the vehicle is mostly 
available. Her busy season is July to November, so the vehicle would be unavailable most of the time during those 
months. Mr. Benton said two other options he has would be the code enforcement or county extension office vehicles. 
He said both are used a good bit of the time but might be a backup option or available after five p.m. Commissioner 
Gray said he saw Mr. Davis using his vehicle when the recreational truck had to be used by other employees to go 
to training. Mr. Davis said he and his employees use their personal vehicles often. He said when games are in 
different areas or training, even get food for concessions from one location to the other. He said his employees never 
complain and rarely ask for mileage or reimbursement for gas. Chairman Henry asked Mr. Davis if the shared option 
would work for him. Mr. Davis said it could work if there would be a vehicle available when needed. Commissioner 
Gray suggested a vehicle use schedule and said the recreation department should be listed on the vehicle. He said 
they should not have to have to ask permission. Commissioner Pounds said her concern is if a vehicle will always 
be available. Commissioner Gray said a shared schedule for a few months will help track uses and show the need 
for a second vehicle.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to table the purchase of a new vehicle for the Recreational Department until 
January unless there is a need before that time. Commissioner Gray seconded, motion passed unanimously. 
 

Business Item 16: ACCG Legislative Conference Voting Delegate Appointment: Chairman Henry said they need 
to appoint a voting delegate for the AGGC Legislative Conference. He said he would be out of town. Commissioner 
Pounds said she plans to attend the conference and would serve as a voting delegate if no one else was available. 
She said she is upset about recent citizen comments made by Mrs. Patrick regarding conferences she had attended. 
She said Mrs. Patrick's comment was rude. Commissioner Gray said it was the taxpayer's money and asked why she 
needed to go to Washington. Commissioner Pounds said she brings a lot to the table after attending classes, things 
the others don’t know about. She said it was never an issue until Commissioner Gray was elected and started listening 
to Mary Patrick. She said if the board had an issue, they should take it up with Atlanta because if Governor Kemp 
disapproved of the conferences they would not be offered. Commissioner Pounds said to give her a training budget 
because she is attending classes and conferences. Commissioner Jernigan requested that the Chairman move on with 
the appointment. Chairman Henry said they did need to move on, but he also said they do have a budget for travel 
and training. He said the commissioners need to stay within that budget. Chairman Henry also said if someone 
attended a conference for training or a class, they need to bring back a report.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned that Commissioner Pounds be appointed as the ACCG Legislative Conference 
Voting Delegate. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed 4 to 1. Commissioner Gray opposed. 
Commissioner Gray stated that he voted the way he did because of Commissioner Pounds’ attitude. Chairman Henry 
said the open discussion was closed and they were moving forward.  
 

Business Item 17: Open a New Bank Account for Jasper County Community Food Bank State Economic and 

Infrastructure Development (SEID) Grant- Grant Award # SEID23GA019: Finance Director Larissa Ruark 
presented a request to open a new bank account with the Bank of Monticello. Ms. Ruark said that on July 16, 2024, 
the county was awarded the Southeast Present Regional Commission Grant for $350,000. She said one of the 
requirements was that the county set up a special account, especially for the grant money. 

15



 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve a new account at the Bank of Monticello for the SEID Grant- Grant 
Award # SEID23GA019 funds. Commissioner Ledford seconded, and Chairman Henry added that once funds are 
deposited everything for the food bank be purchased from the special account until the money is gone. He said when 
the funds from the grant are gone, they can close the account easily, motion passed unanimously.  
 

Business item 18: FY2024 Audit Engagement – McNair, McLemore, Middlebrooks & Co., LLC:  Ms. Ruark 
said it is time for the county to renew the annual audit engagement letter. She said David McCoy with McNair, 
McLemore, Middlebrooks & Co. has submitted the FY 20224 audit engagement letter. She said it was verified it 
meets the amounts that the county had budgeted. She said there are several components with the first being the Jasper 
County BOC audit $46500. The 911 authority component unit audit is $8500. Jasper County Public Facilities 
component unit audit $2500. Department of Community Affairs requirement for the annual report of local 
government finances report $1500. The annual required Landfill Financial assurance audit is $2500. The total cost 
is $61,500. Ms. Ruark said she is seeking approval to execute the FY 2024 audit engagement letters. Mr. Benton 
asked if all had been budgeted. Ms. Ruark said they had.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the FY 2024 Audit Engagement Letters. Commissioner Jernigan 
seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

 

Business Item 19: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed: To be determined at a later date. 
 

County Attorney Items: None 

 

County Manager Update:   Mike Benton said the 2024 LMIG Wild Rd construction was scheduled to start the 
week of August 12, 2024, according to information from Pittman Construction. The Senior Center storm water 
drainage project invitation to bid is completed and will be out for bid the week of August 12, 2024. He said the 2024 
additional LMIG funding that commissioners voted to use for repairs to Whip-poor-will Rd, Campbell Cross Rd, 
and part of County Line Rd will also go to bid the same week. Bids for the senior center parking lot and Murder 
Creek Rd are still in the works. He also gave an update on monthly and year-to-date permit information.  He also 
gave an update on the status of the Recreation Board. He said all five members wish to continue to serve but have 
had some setbacks but are working to schedule their next meeting.  
 

Executive Session: Chairman Henry said he needed a five-minute executive session for personnel. 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to start an executive session for personnel at 8:41 p.m. Commissioner Gray 
seconded, motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to exit the Executive Session. at 8:50 p.m.  Commissioner Pounds seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously 
 

Adjourn: Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:50 p.m.  Commissioner Pounds seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
 
___________________________                                                  __________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman                                                                  Sheila Jefferson, Clerk                

 

  

16



Consent Agenda – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: September 9, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 

Summary: 

 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on the meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 

 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 

 
Approve processing of check #’s: 71766-72064 

  

17



Public Hearing 1 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Rezoning Request- Case 2024 REZ-002  
 
 
Summary:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 002. Request to Rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 

 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mrs. Abercrombie is requesting to rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 for use as a used car lot.  
 

The Planning and Zoning board voted to recommend the Rezoning with a 3-2 vote on August 22, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 

18



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             1 

JASPER COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

REQUEST FOR REZONING 
 

 

CASE NUMBER   2024-REZ-002 

 

EXISTING LAND USE MAP Gateway Corridor 

 

PROPOSED LAND USE MAP N/A 

 

EXISTING ZONING  AG (Agricultural) 

 

PROPOSED ZONING   C-2 (General Commercial) 

 

LOCATION    22016 Hwy 11N    

     PARCEL SIZE: .92 Acres 

TAX PARCEL:  015 069 

     COMMISSION DISTRICT: (5) Five 

 

OWNER Austin Scott 

 

PETITIONER Jessica Abercrombie 

 

REPRESENTATIVE   Jessica Abercrombie 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPLICANT’S INTENT To rezone from AG (Agricultural) zoning district to 

C-2 (General Commercial) district.  
 

 

19



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             2 

SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA: 
 

SUBJECT SITE: The subject site is .92 acres, located at 22016 Hwy 11N. Property is 

currently zoned AG (Agricultural).   
 

NEARBY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES/ZONINGS: 
 

North 

Use: Convivence Store 

Zone: C-2 (General Commercial) 
 

East 

Use: Single-family residential (build in process) 

Zone: AG (Agricultural) 
 

South 

Use: Single-family residential (Existing)  

Zone: AG (Agricultural) 
 

West 

Use: Single-family residential (Existing) 

Zone: AG (Agricultural) 
 

 

FINDINGS: 
 

Planning Staff, concerning each application, investigate and present a finding with 

respect to the factors below, as well as any other factors it may find relevant, 

pursuant to Sec. 620-060. 
 

A.  WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL PERMIT A USE THAT IS SUITABLE IN 

VIEW OF THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF ADJACENT AND NEARBY PROPERTY. 

 

FINDING: The proposed use may be suitable for the subject site 

considering the adjacent property to the north is zoned C-2 . 

 

B.  WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL ADVERSELY AFFECT THE EXISTING 

USE OR USABILITY OF ADJACENT OR NEARBY PROPERTY. 
 

FINDING: Staff views the proposed zoning as consistent with the existing 

pattern of transition in land use intensity and does not 

anticipate adverse affects to the development of surrounding 

properties. 
 

C. WHETHER THE PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE ZONING PROPOSAL HAS A 

REASONABLE ECONOMIC USE AS CURRENTLY ZONED. 
 

FINDING: The subject site has a reasonable use as currently zoned. 
 

20



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             3 

D. WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL RESULT IN A USE WHICH WILL OR 

COULD CAUSE AN EXCESSIVE BURDENSOME USE OF EXISTING STREETS, 

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES, UTILITIES, OR SCHOOLS. 
 

FINDING: Staff does not anticipate the proposed use will have a 

significant impact on the facilities and utilities serving the area.  
 

E. WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE POLICIES AND 

INTENT OF THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN. 
 

FINDING: The proposed zoning is not consistent with the Future Land 

Use Map or the Monticello Crossroads Scenic Byway Corridor 

Management plan. 
 

F. WHETHER THERE ARE OTHER EXISTING OR CHANGING CONDITIONS 

AFFECTING THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY WHICH GIVE 

SUPPORTING GROUNDS FOR EITHER APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL OF THE 

ZONING PROPOSAL. 
 

FINDING: The zoning of the parcel to the North is C-2 (General 

Commercial). While the convenience store has been operated 

in the county for the past 30 plus years its zoning does not  

match up with the current future land use map.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             4 

 

NOTICE SIGN 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             5 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             6 

 

ZONING MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

Red circle approximate location 

24



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             7 

 
 

25



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             9 

 

 

 

27



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             10 

 

 

 

 

 

28



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             11 

 

 

 

 

 

SCENIC BYWAY CORRIDOR MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

 

 

 

29



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             12 

 

 

 

APPLICANT’S INFORMATION 

 

30



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             14 

 

 

 

 

 

32



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             16 

 

 

 

 

 

34



2024-REZ-002  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Business Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Rezoning Request- Case 2024 REZ-002  
 
 
Summary:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 002. Request to Rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 

 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mrs. Abercrombie is requesting to rezone .92 acres from AG to C-2 for use as a used car lot.  
 

The Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend the request. The vote was 3-2  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

  

36



 

  

Public Hearing 2 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing  
 
 
Summary:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 003. Request to Rezone 5.0 acres from AG to C-2 

 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Pruett is requesting to rezone 5.0 acres next to Larry’s four-way to C-2 for future commercial 
development.  
 

The Planning and Zoning board voted to recommend the Rezoning with a 3-2 vote on August 22, 2024 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

37



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             1 

JASPER COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

REQUEST FOR REZONING 
 

 

CASE NUMBER   2024-REZ-003 

 

EXISTING LAND USE MAP Neighborhood Activity Centers 

 

PROPOSED LAND USE MAP N/A 

 

EXISTING ZONING  AG (Agricultural) 

 

PROPOSED ZONING   C-2 (General Commercial) 

 

LOCATION    Hwy 212W    

     PARCEL SIZE: 5.0 Acres 

TAX PARCEL:  020B 097 

     COMMISSION DISTRICT: (4) Four 

 

OWNER W.S Pruett III 

 

PETITIONER W.S Pruett III 

 

REPRESENTATIVE   W.S Pruett III 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPLICANT’S INTENT To rezone from AG (Agricultural) zoning district to 

C-2 (General Commercial) district.  
 

 

38



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             2 

SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA: 
 

SUBJECT SITE: The subject site is 5.0 acres, located at Hwy 212 W next to Larry’s 
four way. Property is currently zoned AG (Agricultural).   
 

NEARBY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES/ZONINGS: 
 

North 

Use: Convivence Store 

Zone: C-2 (General Commercial) 
 

East 

Use: Single-family residential (Existing) 

Zone: AG (Agricultural) 
 

South 

Use: Single-family residential (Existing)  

Zone: AG (Agricultural) 
 

West 

Use: Undeveloped land 

Zone: C2 (General Commercial) 
 

 

FINDINGS: 
 

Planning Staff, concerning each application, investigate and present a finding with 

respect to the factors below, as well as any other factors it may find relevant, 

pursuant to Sec. 620-060. 
 

A.  WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL PERMIT A USE THAT IS SUITABLE IN 

VIEW OF THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF ADJACENT AND NEARBY PROPERTY. 

 

FINDING: The proposed use may be suitable for the subject site 

considering the adjacent property to the north and west is 

zoned C-2 . 

 

B.  WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL ADVERSELY AFFECT THE EXISTING 

USE OR USABILITY OF ADJACENT OR NEARBY PROPERTY. 
 

FINDING: Staff views the proposed zoning as consistent with the existing 

pattern of transition in land use intensity and does not 

anticipate adverse affects to the development of surrounding 

properties. 
 

C. WHETHER THE PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE ZONING PROPOSAL HAS A 

REASONABLE ECONOMIC USE AS CURRENTLY ZONED. 
 

FINDING: The subject site has a reasonable use as currently zoned. 

39



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             3 

 

D. WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL WILL RESULT IN A USE WHICH WILL OR 

COULD CAUSE AN EXCESSIVE BURDENSOME USE OF EXISTING STREETS, 

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES, UTILITIES, OR SCHOOLS. 
 

FINDING: Staff does not anticipate the proposed use will have a 

significant impact on the facilities and utilities serving the area.  
 

E. WHETHER THE ZONING PROPOSAL IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE POLICIES AND 

INTENT OF THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN. 
 

FINDING: The proposed zoning is consistent with the Future Land Use 

Map. 
 

F. WHETHER THERE ARE OTHER EXISTING OR CHANGING CONDITIONS 

AFFECTING THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY WHICH GIVE 

SUPPORTING GROUNDS FOR EITHER APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL OF THE 

ZONING PROPOSAL. 
 

FINDING: The proposed rezoning falls in line with the Jasper County 

Joint Comprehensive Plan for 2023-2028 and future land use 

map. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             4 

NOTICE SIGN 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             5 

 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             6 

ZONING MAP 

Parcel marked in Blue Hashmarks 

 
 

 

 

 

 

43



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             7 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

Red circle approximate location 

 

44



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             9 

 

 

 

 

 

46



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             10 

 

 

 

APPLICANT’S INFORMATION 

 

47



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             11 
48



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             13 

 

 

 

 

 

50



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             15 

Plat of Property 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



2024-REZ-003  

Planning Commission – 08/22/2024 

Board of Commissioners – 09/09/2024             16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



Business Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Rezoning Request- Case 2024 REZ-003 
 
 
Summary:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 003. Request to Rezone 5.0 acres from AG to C-2 

 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Pruett is requesting to rezone 5.0 acres next to Larry’s four-way to C-2 for future commercial 
development.  
 

The Planning and Zoning board voted to recommend the Rezoning with a 3-2 vote on August 22, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

  

54



 

 

Public Hearing 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-05-01. Land Division plat for three additional parcels between Bethel Church Rd. and New 
Bethel Grove Church Rd. at Hwy 11N. 
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Mills is requesting to futher divide three additional parcels from the parent parcel The property 
owner had previously divided the parent parcel under the minor plat process in April of 2024. The additional 
parcels is for him and his family to build homes on. 
 
 
 
 

55



56



57



58



59



60



Business Item 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Land Division Plat  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-05-01. Land Division plat for three additional parcels between Bethel Church Rd and New 
Bethel Grove Church Rd at Hwy 11N. 
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Mills is requesting to further divide three additional parcels from the parent parcel. The 
property owner had previously divided the parent parcel under the minor plat process in April of 2024. The 
additional parcels are for him and his family to build homes on. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

 

 

  

61



 
 
  

Public Hearing 4: 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Land Division Plat  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-06-01. Land Division plat for eight parcels off HWY 212 and Conley Ditch Rd. 
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Tyler of Southern Land Conservancy LLC is requesting to divide 53.3 acres Zoned RES in to 8 
parcels. Mr. Tyler has the required DOT approval. 
 
 
 

62



63



64



65



Southern Land access plan.dwg

66



Business Item 4: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Land Division Plat  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-06-01. Land Division plat for eight parcels between off HWY 212 and Conley Ditch Rd. 
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Tyler of Southern Land Conservancy LLC is requesting to divide 53.3 acres Zoned RES into 8 
parcels. Mr. Tyler has the required DOT approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

 

  

67



 

Public Hearing 5 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Land Division Plat  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-06-02. Land Division plat for two additional parcels off Post Rd.  
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Jordan, representing the property owner, is requesting to divide 55.75 acres Zoned AG into 2 
parcels. The property owner had previously divided the parent parcel under the minor plat process in April of 
2024.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

68



            

Jasper County Planning and Zoning

126 W Greene St, Suite 017

Monticello, GA 31064

Office numbers: 706-468-4905 or 706-468-4940

APPLICATION FOR DIVISION OF LAND 

Submittal Date:________________

Project Name: ________________________________________________________________________

# of Lots _____________________________  Total Acres ___________________________

Project Address of Primary Street: ______________________________________________________ 

Tax Map and Parcel Numbers ______________________             Zoning _________________________

Water Source:    Public   or  Private       Wastewater Source: Septic or    Sewer

Applicant/Company: ________________________________________________________________ 

Representative: _______________________________      Cell: _______________________________ 

Email: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________

Property Owner’s Name: ____________________________________________________________

Phone: _____________________________     Cell Phone: ___________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Email: _____________________________________________________________________________

(If property owner is different from applicant, we must have a signed, notarized original letter giving express
written permission for the use.)

24–Hour Contact Name: _____________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ________________________________

Applicant Signature: ______________________________________         Date: _________________

1
Rvsd 05/30/2024

69

JaronPaulJones
6/10/24

JaronPaulJones
Parham, Nobella - Post Rd Division

JaronPaulJones
2

JaronPaulJones
55.75 AC

JaronPaulJones
Post Road

JaronPaulJones
016 070A

JaronPaulJones
AG

JaronPaulJones
Nobella Parham

JaronPaulJones
Nobella Parham

JaronPaulJones
917-334-7724

JaronPaulJones
noblefortune@yahoo.com

JaronPaulJones
649 Greene Ave Apt 1, Brooklyn, NY 11221

JaronPaulJones
Nobella Parham

JaronPaulJones
917-334-7724

JaronPaulJones
Nobella Parham

JaronPaulJones
917-334-7724

JaronPaulJones
6/10/24

JaronPaulJones

JaronPaulJones

JaronPaulJones
917-334-7724

JaronPaulJones
649 Greene Ave Apt 1, Brooklyn, NY 11221

JaronPaulJones
noblefortune@yahoo.com



Ordinance Requirements for submission:

Section 105-161 - Land division plat.

Prior to submitting construction plans for any street, utility, or other site improvements (as applicable), the 
Developer shall submit to the Director of Planning & Zoning to forward for review and recommendation by the 
Planning Commission and review and final decision by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, a Plat 
showing any combination or subdivision of the proposed lot/s prepared in accordance with these Regulations.

1. Pre-application review stage.
Before the submission of any plats to the director of planning, the developer must submit a sketch 
plat showing the proposed development layout of the subdivision. The developer and director of 
planning should informally discuss what this chapter requires and what the developer proposes to do. 
This will assist the developer in preparing a residential subdivision plat that meet from the very 
beginning the intent and standards specified by this chapter so as to reduce undue time and expense 
in preparing plans that cannot be approved by the planning commission.

2. Application Requirements:
A. Submit seven (7) paper copies and one (1) digital copy of the Plat and supporting data.

The Plat shall meet the minimum standards for plat preparation including, but not limited, to:
1. General

a. Name, address, and phone number of designer of subdivision
plat.

b. Name, address, and phone number of developer of parcel. 
c. Date of plat preparation with space for revision dates.
d. North point, identified as magnetic, true or grid.
e. Minimum Graphic scale of one (1) inch equals 200 feet. 
f. Appropriate legend of symbols used on plat.
g. List any conditions of zoning, rezoning, variance and date of

approval, if applicable.
h. Certificates of approval. The following certificates shall be inscribed on the 
residential subdivision plat:

(1) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the planning commission.
(2) Signed seal of a state-registered land surveyor, certified landscape 
architect or state professional engineer.
(3) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the county health
department.
(4) Owner's certificate stating property ownership, consenting to development, 
and that all appropriate taxes have been paid.

2. Existing Conditions
a. Zoning district of land to be subdivided and zoning

classification of adjoining properties.
b. Exact boundary lines of the tract indicated by a heavy line

giving lengths and bearings. The boundary lines should 
include the entire tract to be developed. Provide date and 
source of survey.

c. Location map showing the parent parcel in relation to the 
surrounding area at a minimum scale of one inch to 2,000
feet. Include well-known landmarks such as railroads,

2
Rvsd 05/30/2024

70



highways, bridges, creeks, etc. and city and/or county 
jurisdictional boundaries and land lot lines, if applicable.

d. Location of natural features including streams and
watercourses with direction of flow on the proposed project. 

e. Location and/or size of existing cultural features on or
adjacent to the proposed subdivision.

f. Limits of 100-year floodplain. If none, note indicating such
with data source and date.

g. Location and square footage of wetland areas.
h. Note as to provision of water supply and sewer disposal. 
i. Existing sewers, water mains, drains, culverts, and other

underground facilities or utilities within easements or rights-
of-way on or within 300 feet of the tract to be subdivided, as 
relevant.

j. Adjoining property information, lot arrangement and/or
adjoining property owners’ names, rights-of-way and 
easements within 300 feet of subdivision.

k. Total acreage, minimum dwelling size and minimum lot size
of project.

B. Land division on State Routes require GDOT comments to be submitted to the

Planning & Zoning Department along with the land division (aka Final) Plat.

C. A letter requesting review and approval of a land division plat and giving the

name and address of a person to whom the notice of hearing and action on the land 

division plat is to be sent.

D. Official date of submission. The official date of submission of the land division

plat will be the date of the next regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the planning 

commission that is more than 60 days following proper land division plat submittal to the 

director of planning.

E. The planning commission will review the land division plat for conformance to

this chapter, the county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 119, and other relevant 

regulations and will consider the comments or suggestions of other appropriate review 

agencies, persons, or entities in regard to the plat. The planning commission or director of 

planning will indicate on the land division plat, or by a written memorandum attached to the 

land division plat, any comments or suggested changes that are necessary to meet the intent 

of this chapter or to serve the best interests of the county.

F. Public hearing. Before acting on the land division plat, the planning commission

will hear public input on the plat. Notice of the hearing must be published in a newspaper of 

general circulation in the county at least 15 days before the hearing.

G. Action of the Board of Commissioners. No more than 60 days after the official date of

submission of the land division plat, the Board of Commissioners will either approve the 

plat, conditionally approve the plat (noting the conditions of approval on the plat), 

disapprove the plat, or table the plat for further consideration. Action may be taken on the 

entire land division plat or any portion of it.

3
Rvsd 05/30/2024

71



H. Failure of Board of Commissioners to act. If the Board of Commissioners fails to act within

90 days of the official date of submission of the land division plat, the plat will be deemed 

automatically approved by the Board of Commissioners.

3. Approval of a land division Plat shall be deemed an expression of approval of the layout

submitted, pending fulfillment of the requirements of these Regulations and the conditions of the 

land division Plat, if any.

4. If the land division Plat is not recorded within 6 months of approval, the approval shall
expire, unless a request for an extension of time has been submitted to and is subsequently approved 
by the Planning Commission in a public hearing.

Or would be applicable under the following:

Sec. 105-28

Minor Plat means a division of land into no more than 3 new lots, where no new streets are platted, 
constructed, or opened, no publicly-owned or central sewerage or water facilities are constructed, and no 
improvements of existing roads are planned. A Minor Plat does not include the further subdividing of a lot 
within a platted and recorded subdivision. This definition does not include land zoned O-I, C-1, C-2, or M as 
defined by Sec. 119-48 of Part II of the Code of Ordinances. Further dividing of land approved through the 
Minor Plat process within a 24-month period where the total number of lots would exceed the 3-lot limit 
previously approved shall follow for the Land division process and require the review and approval of the 
Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Application Complete:  Yes  No

If No, what paperwork is needed? __________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________

Date of P&Z Meeting: _____________________ Date of BOC Meeting: ________________________

Application Fees - $300 + $10 per lot

Total Fee Amount: $300 + ______(@ $10 per lot) = $___________________

4
Rvsd 05/30/2024

72



JEFFRIES ROAD

PO
ST

 R
OA

D

AXEL
 

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

1/2" SQUARE ROD

5/8" REBAR

1/2" SQUARE ROD

1/5" OTP

1/2" REBAR

S44°42'54"E  338.46'

S44°42'54"E  401.76'

S44°42'48"E  561.67'

S44°45'27"E

272.08'

S8
°5

4'
40

"W
  1

22
8.

65
'

N46°37'37"W  482.38'

N46°32'48"W  290.60'

N46°40'09"W
231.67'

N46°35'22"W
216.82'

N46°34'13"W
137.69'

N46°37'01"W

238.94'

S3
5°

16
'29

"W
  4

79
.10

'

N54°38'59"W  581.72'

S3
9°0

0'3
0"

W
  2

10
8.5

9'

N36
°5

8'2
7"

E  
15

07
.51

'

S44°42'31"E
296.75'

N67°01'29"W

199.74'

NOF
010 069

ROBERT LEE & LISA MARIE CLARK
D.B. 1069, p. 20
P.B. 12, p. 113

NOF
016 070A

CHARLES A & NOBELLA PARHAM
D.B. 799, p. 89
P.B. 12, p. 477

NOF
016 090

VERNAL LEAH DARNELL
D.B. 150, p. 279

P.B. 8, p. 726

NOF
016 071

JAMES JACKSON
P.B. 8 p. 273

NOF
016 072

CHRIST
OPHER

CORNELI
US S

TO
NE

D.B. 9
83, p

. 1
10

P.B. 9
, p

. 2
6

NOF
016 070

MARY L & JAMES PERRY HAYES
MARITAL TRUST
D.B. 1082, p. 370

P.B. 7, p. 63

NOF
016 020 001

LUVENIA JEFFRIES & EUGENE ZAIRE
D.B. 923, p. 279
P.B. 11, p. 705BNOF

016 089
MAXINE & ALEATHA JEFFRIES

AND OTHERS
D.B. 150, p. 279

P.B. 8, p. 726

NOF
016 073

CHRIST
OPHER

CORNELI
US S

TO
NE

D.B. 9
83, p

. 1
10

P.B. 9
, p

. 2
6

NOF
016 074

CHRISTOPHER
CORNELIUS STONE

D.B. 983, p. 110
P.B. 9, p. 26

NOF
010 070B

JOSEPH F LAWSON III
D.B. 263, p. 29
P.B. 9, p. 128

TRACT C1

TRACT B

TRACT A

80
' R

/W
 - 

22
' A

SP
HA

LT

LL 29

LL 2

LL 1

LL 30
APPROXIMATE LAND
LOT CORNER

WELL
WELL

POND

32.58 AC

33.09 AC

43.44 AC

100-YEAR FLOOD LIMITS
FLOOD ZONE "A"

N46°29'46"W
138.19'

BARBED WIRE FENCE ALONG LINE

BARBED WIRE FENCE ALONG LINE

HOUSE

SHED

PP

PP

PP

N:1247604.72
E:2450906.17

S52°47'08"E
16.98'

CL OF PITTMAN CREEK

P.O.B.

100-YEAR FLOOD LIM
ITS

FLOOD ZONE "A"

LL 
2LL 

1

LL 29LL 2

N46°34'13"W  331.36'

S51°10'54"E  1164.78'

N48°21'06"E  353.26'

12.31 AC

TRACT C2

S8
°5

4'
40

"W
  5

40
.0

3'

IPS 5' SW 
OF OAK TREE

30' PRESCRIPTIVE EASEMENT

CENTERLINE OF ROAD IS PROPERTY LINE

SUBJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION:
CURRENT OWNER: CHARLES & NOBELLA PARHAM
DEED RECORD: D.B. 799, p. 89
PLAT RECORD: P.B. 12, p. 477
TAX RECORD: TAX PARCEL 016 070A

THIS PLAT CLOSURE ACCURACY FOR TRACT C1 IS 1 FOOT IN
1,609,249 FEET, TRACT C2 IS 1 FOOT IN 359,782 FEET.

FIELD DATA WAS COLLECTED USING A TOPCON GM52
TOTAL STATION AND A JAVAD TRIUMPH-LS+
DUAL-FREQUENCY RTK GNSS RECEIVER REFERENCING THE
TRIMBLE VRS-NOW REAL-TIME NETWORK AND HAVING A
RELATIVE POSITIONAL ACCURACY OF LESS THAN 0.04 FEET.

THE FIELD SURVEY WAS COMPLETED IN MAY 2024.

PORTIONS OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON ARE
LOCATED WITHIN A FLOODPLAIN AS DETERMINED FROM
THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY MAP
PANEL 13159C0075D FOR JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA DATED
10-13-2022.

EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY MAY EXIST WHICH ARE
NOT SHOWN HEREON AND MAY BE RECORDED OR
UNRECORDED.

HORIZONTAL: STATE PLANE, WEST ZONE, NAD83 (2011).

(706) 468-8999      www.jordan-eng.com
144 N. WARREN ST.   MONTICELLO, GA 31064

Engineering    Surveying    Soils    UAV Mapping

Corporate License No. LSF 000768

FOR CLERK'S OFFICE USE

PROPERTY BOUNDARY
OVERHEAD POWER
EASEMENT
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE
CREEK OR SHORELINE
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
EDGE OF DIRT/GRAVEL

LL

P.O.B.

D.B.

POWER POLE

POINT OF BEGINNING

DEED BOOK
P.B.

LAND LOT
PLAT BOOK

2/1

BEARING CHANGE (NO PIN SET)
" SOLID ROD (REBAR) SET

OPEN-TOP PIPE FOUND

LEGEND
SOLID ROD (REBAR) FOUND P.O.R. POINT OF REFERENCE

NOF NOW OR FORMERLY

OTP OPEN-TOP PIPE

SURVEYOR'S TRAVERSE NAIL SET

CMF CONCRETE MON. FD

SURVEYOR'S PK NAIL SET

DENOTES PAINTED TREES OR FENCE NEAR PROPERTY LINE.
LETTER IS CODE BELOW, NUMBER IS FEET FROM LINE, AND
ARROW IS DIRECTION FROM LINE THAT EVIDENCE WAS FOUND.

B: BLUE PAINT
W: WHITE PAINT
Y: YELLOW PAINT
R: RED PAINT

TP: STEEL TEE POST
HW: HOG WIRE
BW: BARBED WIRE
CL: CHAIN LINK

BUILDING HATCH GRAVEL

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

GR
ID

 G
A-

W

N
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
As required by subsection (d) of O.C.G.A. 15-6-67, this plat has
been been prepared by a land surveyor.  This plat has been
approved by all applicable local jurisdictions that require prior
approval for recording this type of plat.  For any applicable local
jurisdiction that requires approval of this type of plat, the names
of the individuals signing or approving this plat, the agency or
office of that individual, and the date of approval are listed in the
approval table shown.  For any applicable local jurisdiction that
does not require approval of this type of plat, the name of such
local jurisdiction and the number of the applicable ordinance or
resolution providing that no such approval is required are listed in
the approval table shown hereon. Such approvals, affirmations,
or ordinance or resolution numbers should be confirmed with the
appropriate governmental bodies by any purchaser or user of this
plat as to intended use of any parcel. Furthermore, the
undersigned land surveyor certifies that this plat complies with
the minimum technical standards for property surveys in Georgia
as set forth in the rules and regulations of the Georgia Board of
Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and as
set forth in O.C.G.A. Section 15-6-67.

__________________________
Robert O. Jordan, GA RLS 2902

______________________________
PLAT IS APPROVED FOR RECORDING
Jasper County Planning & Zoning Director

SITE

PO
ST

 R
OA

D

JEFFRIES RD

ALD
RID

GE R
D

CO
NCO

RD RD

JOHNNY FEARS RD

RO
SS

 RD

ALFRED LN

MAY 17, 2024SCALE 

GEORGIA MILITIA DISTRICT 380
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

NOBELLA PARHAM
LAND LOTS 1 & 2, DISTRICT 15

PROPERTY DIVISION SURVEY FOR

1" = 200'

0' 200' 400' 600'

TOTAL ROAD FRONTAGE:
TRACT C1: 1228.65'
TRACT C2: 540.03'

TOTAL ACREAGE:
TOTAL AREA OF TRACT
C1 & TRACT C2 IS 55.75

ACRES

73

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 2902

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\SURVEY\PARHAM, NOBELLA - 8935 POST RD. - BOUNDARY-PLAT\DWG\PARHAM, BOUNDARY - POST RD 4 DIVISIONS R6.DWG  June 14, 2024  June 14, 2024June 14, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3



Business Item 5: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Land Division Plat  
 
 
Summary:  LD 2024-06-02. Land Division plat for two additional parcels off Post Rd.  
 

 

 
 
 
Background: Mr. Jordan, representing the property owner, is requesting to divide 55.75 acres Zoned AG into 2 
parcels. The property owner had previously divided the parent parcel under the minor plat process in April of 
2024.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

  

74



Business Item 6: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Initial Short-Term Rental License  
 
 
Summary:  Jasper County had 12 applications for Short-term rental licenses.  
 
Background: The Fire Marshall, Building Inspector, and Health Department have completed the inspections 
required. The occupancy for each short-term rental was based on the septic system inspection as well as habitable 
rooms as defined in Chapter 3 of the 2018 International Residential Building Code. 
 
 
Each applicant had minor issues that needed to be corrected and was given 30 days to get them corrected. The 
building inspector will go out and perform the follow-up inspections to make sure the corrections were made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

  

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:    
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: 911 Authority Board Structure  
   
 
Summary:  

 

A Joint Work Session with the Jasper County BOC, Monticello City Council, and the Shady Dale City Council 
was held on July 29, 2024. The work session agenda was to discuss reducing the size of the 911 Authority Board. 
 
The following changes were recommended during the work session: 
 
Reduce the 911 Authority Board to seven members, where Jasper County appoints three members, City of 
Monticello appoints one member and the City of Shady Dale appoints one member, where the Sheriff and the Fire 
Chief serve as members by position. Upon reaching March 1, 2025, the 911 Authority Board will be reduced to 
five members, where Jasper County appoints one member, City of Monticello appoints one member and the City 
of Shady Dale appoints one member, where the Sheriff and the Fire Chief serve as members by position. 
 
The 911 Authority Board sent a letter dated August 22, 2024, to the BOC requesting the 911 Authority Board be 
reduced to seven members, not five members. 
 
 
 
Background:  

 

The Shady Dale City Council voted to approve the reduction to seven then to five members at its August 8, 2024, 
Council meeting. 
 
The Monticello City Council voted to table any action at its August 13 Council meeting waiting to see action by 
the Jasper County BOC. 
 

 
 
Cost:   
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
  

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



Business Item 11: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Fire Rescue 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Fire Station 7 Preliminary Design Proposal – Precision Planning 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Precision Planning has provided a proposal for as built-site verification, preliminary conceptual floor 
plan design and a preliminary opinion of probable cost. 
 
 
 
Background:  

 

The BOC has approved establishing a third fully staffed Fire Rescue Station to be located in the Fire 
Station #7 building located on Hwy 142 between Shady Dale and Newborn. 
 
Improvements to the building needed to accommodate the full time ambulance and fire services staff 
include: 
Sleeping Quarters 
Bathrooms 
Kitchen Area 
Living Area 
Office Area 
Exterior Door Addition 
 

 
 
 
Cost:   
 
Preliminary Design Proposal - $9200 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

164



Initials: _________ 

July 12, 2024 

Mr. Mike Benton, County Manager 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

126 W. Greene Street, Suite 18 

Monticello, GA 31064 

mbenton@jaspercountyga.org  

Re: Jasper County Fire Station No.7 
Preliminary Design Proposal 

Dear Mike, 

Precision Planning, Inc. (PPI) appreciates the opportunity to submit this professional design services proposal to 

Jasper County (Client). This proposal is based upon our discussions and past experience with similar projects. We 

offer the following project understanding, scope and fees: 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

PPI understands that the Client is planning renovations and expansion of the existing Fire Station No. 7 located 

on Highway 142 in Shady Dale, Georgia. The Client has requested preliminary design services as outlined below. 

PROJECT SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. Preliminary Design 

A. PPI will meet with the Client to review goals, objectives, and program requirements. 

B. PPI will field measure and prepare an As-Built Floor Plan for use in conceptual design. 

C. PPI will prepare and submit a draft Conceptual Floor Plan illustrating proposed renovations. 

D. PPI will incorporate up to one (1) revision based on Client review and will issue a final Conceptual Floor 

Plan to the Client. 

E. PPI will develop a preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost (OPC) for the proposed project. 

Note: Up to two (2) meetings are included in this scope of services. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

The following additional services may be proposed and billed according to the attached Schedule of Standard 

Hourly Rates: 

1. Additional meetings required or requested by the Client not listed above

2. Services required due to significant changes in the project including, but not limited to, size, quality,

complexity or Client’s schedule

3. Land Surveying

4. Detailed architecture and engineering

5. Professional renderings

6. Construction documents and specifications

7. Permitting services

8. Procurement/bidding services

9. Construction phase services

165

mailto:mbenton@jaspercountyga.org


Mr. Mike Benton, County Manager 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

July 12, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Initials: _________ 

EXCLUSIONS 
 

1. Environmental engineering, i.e., wetlands, Phase I audits, stream buffer variances. 

2. Geotechnical, special inspections, materials testing, and water testing of roof and exterior envelope. 

 

COMPENSATION 
 

PPI agrees to perform the services outlined above for a Lump Sum Fee of $9,200.00 to be invoiced monthly 

according to progress. Reimbursable expenses are in addition to the Lump Sum Fee (refer to Item H in the 

attached Standard General Conditions), and will be invoiced up to a Not to Exceed maximum of $800.00. 

Additional services, if requested, shall be invoiced according to the attached Schedule of Hourly Rates. 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to propose these professional services. If this proposal is acceptable, please 

authorize below and initial at the bottom of each page where indicated. An executed copy of this agreement 

may be returned to me by e-mail. Precision Planning looks forward to this opportunity to continue to serve 

Jasper County! 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Elizabeth A. Hudson, RA 

Executive Vice President, LEED® AP BD+C 

 

LH/kb 
g:\document\24\a24-000\1502\jasper county\fire station #03\fire station 3 preliminary design 7-12-24.doc  

 

Attachments:  

• Schedule of Standard Hourly Rates 

• Standard General Conditions 

 

 

 

 

 

Authorization given this    day of 

      , 2024 

By:        

Title: ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

166



Mr. Mike Benton, County Manager 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

July 12, 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Initials: _________ 

 
2024 SCHEDULE OF ARCHITECTURAL HOURLY RATES 

 

Principal in Charge .............................................................................................. $185.00/Hour 

Senior Project Architect ...................................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Project Architect ................................................................................................. $125.00/Hour 

Senior Project Manager ...................................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Project Manager .................................................................................................. $125.00/Hour 

Senior Job Captain ............................................................................................... $115.00/Hour 

Job Captain .......................................................................................................... $100.00/Hour 

Intern Architect ..................................................................................................... $90.00/Hour 

CADD Technician ................................................................................................... $80.00/Hour 

CADD Designer ...................................................................................................... $60.00/Hour 

Interior Designer ................................................................................................... $90.00/Hour 

Senior Civil Engineer ........................................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Civil Engineer ....................................................................................................... $125.00/Hour 

Senior Landscape Architect ................................................................................ $150.00/Hour 

Landscape Architect .............................................................................................. $90.00/Hour 

Project Administrator............................................................................................ $90.00/Hour 

Senior Project Assistant ........................................................................................ $80.00/Hour 

Project Assistant .................................................................................................... $70.00/Hour 

Structural Engineer ............................................................................................. $150.00/Hour 

Junior Structural Engineer .................................................................................. $125.00/Hour 

Mechanical/Plumbing Engineer ......................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Junior Mechanical/Plumbing Engineer .............................................................. $125.00/Hour 

Electrical Engineer ............................................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Junior Electrical Engineer.................................................................................... $125.00/Hour 

Cost Estimator ..................................................................................................... $110.00/Hour 

Senior Survey Manager ....................................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Survey Manager .................................................................................................. $125.00/Hour 

Registered Land Surveyor (RLS) .......................................................................... $150.00/Hour 

Survey Coordinator ............................................................................................. $110.00/Hour 

Survey Technician ................................................................................................. $90.00/Hour 

Surveying Crew .................................................................................................... $175.00/Hour 

 

167



                   January 27, 2021 

 

Initials: _________ 

 

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 

 

A. In accepting and utilizing any drawings, reports and data on any form of electronic media generated and 

furnished by Precision Planning, Inc., the Owner/Client agrees that all such electronic files are 

instruments of service of Precision Planning, Inc., who shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all 

common law, statutory law and other rights, without limitation, including copyrights. 

 

 Intelligent data, including but not limited to Building Information Modeling (BIM) and 3D 

Grading/Surface Modeling, are instruments of service. When transmitted, this data shall be for the sole 

purpose of visualization of design ideas by the Owner/Client and shall not constitute or supplement the 

contract documents. Differences may exist between these models and the corresponding hard copy 

contract documents, and Precision Planning, Inc. makes no representation about their accuracy or 

completeness.  

 

 The Owner/Client agrees not to reuse these electronic files, in whole or in part, for any purpose other 

than for the Project. The Owner/Client agrees not to transfer these electronic files to others without 

the prior written consent of Precision Planning, Inc. The Owner/Client further agrees that Precision 

Planning, Inc. shall have no responsibility or liability to Owner/Client or others for any changes made by 

anyone other than Precision Planning, Inc. or for any reuse of the electronic files without the prior 

written consent of Precision Planning, Inc. 

In addition, the Owner/Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold 

harmless Precision Planning, Inc., its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants (collectively, 

Consultant) against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense 

costs, arising from any changes made by anyone other than Precision Planning, Inc. or from any use or 

reuse of the electronic files without the prior written consent of Precision Planning, Inc.. 

Under no circumstances shall delivery of electronic files for use by the Owner/Client be deemed a sale 

by Precision Planning, Inc., and Precision Planning, Inc. makes no warranties, either express or implied, 

of merchantability and fitness for any particular purpose. In no event shall Precision Planning, Inc. be 

liable for indirect or consequential damages as a result of the Owner/Client’s unauthorized use or reuse 

of the electronic files. 

B. There shall be no assignments of any portion of the work as described within the above proposal or 

during any phase of the work without the written consent by Precision Planning, Inc. There shall be no 

disclosures of the scope of services and/or fees, as outlined within this proposal, to any third parties 

without the written consent of Precision Planning, Inc. There shall not be any re-use or reproduction of 

this proposal or design documents without the written consent of Precision Planning, Inc. 

 

C. Our professional services shall be performed, our findings obtained, and our recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally accepted planning, engineering, land surveying, architectural and 

landscape architectural practices. This warranty is in lieu of all other warranties either implied or 

expressed. Precision Planning, Inc. assumes no responsibility for interpretation made by others based 

upon the work or recommendations made by Precision Planning, Inc. 

 

168



                   January 27, 2021 

 

Initials: _________ 

D. In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the Owner/Client and Precision 

Planning, Inc., the risks have been allocated such that the Owner/Client agrees, to the fullest extent 

permitted by law, to limit the liability of Precision Planning, Inc. and its officers, directors, employees, 

shareholders, owners and subconsultants for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature 

whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or causes, including attorney’s fees and costs and expert-

witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of Precision Planning, Inc. and its officers, 

directors, employees, shareholders, owners and subconsultants shall not exceed $50,000 or the amount 

of Precision Planning, Inc.’s total fee for services rendered on this Project, whichever is greater.  It is 

intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of action, including without limitation 

active and passive negligence, however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. In no 

event shall the Consultant’s liability exceed the amount of available insurance proceeds. 

 

If Owner/Client prefers to have higher limits of professional liability, the limits can be increased to a 

maximum of one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars upon Owner/Client's written request at the time of 

acceptance of this proposal provided that the Owner/Client agrees to pay an additional consideration 

of ten percent (10%) of the total fee or $1,000.00, whichever is greater. The additional charge for the 

higher liability limits is because of the greater risk assumed and is not a charge for additional 

professional liability insurance. 

 

E. Precision Planning, Inc. agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless 

the Owner/Client, its officers, directors and employees (collectively, Owner/Client) against all damages 

and liabilities, to the extent caused by Precision Planning, Inc.’s negligent performance of professional 

services under this Agreement and that of its subconsultants or anyone for whom Precision Planning, 

Inc. is legally liable. 

 

The Owner/Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless 

Precision Planning, Inc., its officers, directors and employees and subconsultants (collectively, Precision 

Planning, Inc.) against all damages and liabilities, to the extent caused by the Owner/Client’s negligent 

acts in connection with the Project and the acts of its contractors, subcontractors or consultants or 

anyone for whom the Owner/Client is legally liable. 

 

Neither the Owner/Client nor Precision Planning, Inc. shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in 

any manner whatsoever for the other party’s own negligence or for the negligence of others. 

 

F. In the event the Owner/Client makes a claim against Precision Planning, Inc. at law or otherwise, for an 

alleged error, omission or other act arising out of the performance of our professional services, and the 

Owner/Client fails to prove such claim, then the Owner/Client shall bear all cost incurred by Precision 

Planning, Inc. in defending itself against such claim(s). The reciprocal of this clause (i.e., a claim made 

by Precision Planning, Inc. against the Owner/Client where failure of proof of claim is established, 

financial responsibility for Owner/Client's defense shall rest upon Precision Planning, Inc.) is hereby 

made a part of this agreement. 

 

G. It is understood and agreed that Precision Planning, Inc. shall not be held responsible for any 

inaccuracies in any materials, data or records of any other person, firm or agency which are provided to 

it and/or may be utilized by it in the performance of specific services. 

 

169



                   January 27, 2021 

 

Initials: _________ 

H. Reimbursable expenses including mileage, photographic enlargements, reductions and reproduction, 

blueprinting, and courier services shall be billed at a rate of actual cost times 1.1. When overnight stay 

is required, it shall be billed as actual subsistence cost times 1.1.   

 

NOTE: No back-up data or copies of bills will be provided for reimbursable expenses invoiced under this 

agreement. Should back-up data be requested, it will be provided for an administrative fee of $100.00 

per monthly invoice requiring verification, plus $1.00 per copy of back-up data provided. 

 

I. In the event additional services beyond the scope of work listed above are required by Owner/Client, 

Precision Planning, Inc. shall perform these services for an amount equal to normal hourly charges on 

work actually performed upon receipt of an approved Change Order signed by both parties. Precision 

Planning, Inc. shall submit monthly invoices for services outlined in this agreement. Payment is due 

upon receipt of invoice. Finance charges of one and one-half percent (1.5%) will be added to any unpaid 

balance at the end of thirty (30) days (APR 18%). 

 

J. The Owner/Client or Precision Planning, Inc. may terminate this Agreement without penalty upon giving 

the other party ten (10) calendar days’ notice in writing. In the event either party terminates for 

convenience, the Owner/Client shall pay Precision Planning, Inc. within seven (7) calendar days of 

receipt of Precision Planning, Inc.’s invoices for all services rendered and all reimbursable costs up to 

the date of termination. In addition, the Owner/Client shall pay Precision Planning, Inc. for all expenses 

reasonably incurred by Precision Planning, Inc. in connection with the orderly termination of this 

Agreement, including but not limited to associated overhead costs and all other expenses directly 

resulting from the termination. In the event government regulations are amended or changed in any 

way, or if the services outlined in this proposal have not been authorized within thirty (30) days of the 

date of this proposal, fees quoted are subject to renegotiation. 

 

K.  Services required by unexpected events which are outside Precision Planning, Inc.’s reasonable control 

including, but not limited to, services resulting from extended schedules shall be compensated as 

additional services. 

 

 

 

170



Business Item 12: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  2024 LRA Project Bid Submittals – County Line Rd Sections, Whip-Poor-Will and Campbell Cross Rd 
  
 
Summary:  

 

Received Four Bid Submittals: 
 
Blount Construction Co.  $1,082,402.12 
C.W. Matthews Contracting  $1,067,902.76 
East Coast Grading   $1,816,458.50 
Pittman Construction   $1,114,831.19 
 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

GDOT LRA Program Funding Amount $801,261 
Does not require a county match 
 
Road projects selected at the May 6, 2024 BOC Meeting: 
 
Whip-Poor-Will Rd 1.3 miles Mill Patches and Asphalt Overlay 
Campbell Cross Rd 1.6 miles Leveling Course Sections and Asphalt Overlay 
County Line Rd .87 miles FDR Three Sections and Asphalt Overlay 
 
 
Cost:   
Low Bid    $1,067,902.76 
Less GDOT 2024 LRA  $   801,261.00 
Balance from County   $   266,641.76 
 
Recommend SPLOST for balance of $266,641.76 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Award the 2024 LRA Paving Project to C.W. Matthews Contracting in the amount of $1,067,902.76. 
  

171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



Business Item 13: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Joint Development Authority Board Appointment 
   
 
 
Summary:  

Commissioner Jernigan recently served as the County Commissioner Representative for the Joint Development 
Authority Board. Commissioner Jernigan recently resigned from the JDA Board. This leaves a vacancy for a 
County Commissioner position on the JDA Board. The Commissioner appointed to fill this position will serve 
until January 1, 2027. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

Jasper County BOC appoints two members to the Four County Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, 
Newton, and Walton Counties. 
 
One (1) Jasper County Commissioner Representative Position 
The term of this seat expires January 1, 2027. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Appoint a Commissioner as the BOC Representative to the Four County Joint Development Authority of Jasper, 
Morgan, Newton, and Walton Counties to complete the term ending January 1, 2027. 
  

182



Business Item 14: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Jasper County Water Authority 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
Subject: Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointment 
  
 
 
Summary: 

 
The Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board has two (2) vacancies. 
 
The positions to be filled are 3-year terms that will end July 1, 2027, and September 30, 2027.   
 
Commissioner Steven Ledford and Ms. Wanda Cummings have both applied for reappointment to the board.  
 
 
 

Background: 
  

The Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board is a five-member board. 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  

183



184



185



186



187



Business Item 15: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: FY 2022 Capital Improvement Element Update Adoption 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Jasper County’s FY 2022 CIE Update has been formally approved by the Department of Community Affairs. 
 
Jasper County BOC is now required to formally adopt the FY 2022 CIE Update 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

Jasper County BOC participates in the State Impact Fee Program. 
 
The State requires counties that have enacted an Impact Fee Program to produce an annual update to the Capital 
Improvements Element each year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
No Cost 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Approve Resolution #2024.09.09 formally adopting the FY 2022 CIE Update. 
 

  

188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



RESOLUTION – 2024.09.09 

 

Jasper County’s Capital Improvements Element and STWP Annual Update – 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the 1989 Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia 
Planning Act, Requiring all local governments to prepare a comprehensive plan in accordance 
with the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department 
of Community Affairs; and 
  

WHEREAS, the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term 
Work Program for Jasper County, Georgia for 2022 was prepared in accordance with the 
Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures established by the Georgia Department of 
Community Affairs;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Jasper County that the Capital 
Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program for Jasper County, Georgia for 2022 as 
approved by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs is hereby adopted  
 

Adopted this 9th day of September 2024.  
 

 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

BY:  
 

________________________________________  
Bruce Henry, Chairman 

 

 
 
ATTEST:  

 
__________________________________________  
Sheila Jefferson, County Clerk 

 
 

197



Business Item 16: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Human Resources 
 

Date:    September 9, 2024 
 

Subject:  Human Resources and County Boards Report 
   
 

Summary:  
 

Staff will present a Human Resource Report and upcoming Board Appointments needed. 
 

Background:                                                                                                                                                                 

A Human Resource Report and expired or expiring Board appointments to the Board of Commissioners have been 
requested of staff.  Reports will be provided in March, June, September, and December. 
 

 

Cost: 
None    
 

 

Recommended Motion: None Required 
  

198



 

 

Jasper County Human Resources Report 

Period Covered: June 2024 – August 2024 

 

Current Open Positions 

EMT  

Paramedics  

911 Dispatchers 

Public Works Mechanic 

Public Works Operator I 

New Hires/Transfers 

Sheriff Office – 2 

Jail- 4 

Terminations/Resignations 

Public Works- 1 

Jail- 1 

Sheriff- 1 

Recreation- 1 

Tax Commissioner- 1 

Fire Rescue- 1 

Total Employees = 170 

Full-time = 115 

Part-time = 55 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199



Page | 2 

                                                                      

Jasper County Boards Report 

Period Covered: September 2024– November 2024 

 

Upcoming Board Appointments Needed: 

Azalea Regional Library Board – 2 

Jasper County Water & Sewer Authority- 2 

Department of Behavioral Health & Developmental Disabilities Council-1 

 

 

 

 

 

200



 
Business Item 17: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 9, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

Work Sessions Scheduled 
 
Monday, September 16, 6:00 P.M. 
FY 2024 CIE Update 
Amending the County Impact Fee Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
 
  

 
 
 
 

201


	Insert from: "Agenda Detail 5.2.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Plat C


	Insert from: "Agenda Detail 11 - Fire Station 3 Preliminary Design 7-12-24.pdf"
	Fire Station 3 Preliminary Design 7-12-24
	PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

	Standard General Conditions_rev 01-27-21


